
























 We welcome your suggestions and want to hear you concerns;
 If you would like to make a public comment, please fill out the 

sign-up sheet located at the podium before meeting starts;
 If you have signed up for public comment, The Commission Chair 

will call your name during the Public Comment Section of the 
Agenda. 

 Please state your name for the record;
 Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes; 
 This is not a question & answer period. The Commission is not able 

to act on matters discussed; and
Thank-you! 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
PROCEDURES

Presenter
Presentation Notes
We welcome your suggestions and want to hear you concerns;If you would like to make a public comment, please fill out the sign-up sheet located at the podium before meeting starts;If you have signed up for public comment, The Commission Chair will call your name during the Public Comment Section of the Agenda. Please state your name for the record;Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes; This is not a question & answer period. The Commission is not able to act on matters discussed; and    Thank-you! 



Christine Lowery, Chair
Ralph Lucero, 2nd Vice Chair
Daniel Torrez, 3rd Vice Chair
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

Presenter
Presentation Notes
 Commission Meeting February 22, 2024



Finance
Report
As of January 31, 2023

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Finance Report Cover Page

https://www.finsmes.com/2018/08/how-channel-finance-can-facilitate-the-supply-chain.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/


• Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance department 
webpage.

• County is reconciled through January 31, 2024 for the Main 
Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is reconciled 
through December 30, 2023 for the Tax operating account. 

• Audit – Our FY23 audit was published today by the OSA.
• 2nd Quarter Report submitted on time and with the Chief for 

final approval
• BAR #4 approved by DFA
• Attended Rockin’ 66 Express Transit Board Meeting

Presenter
Presentation Notes
 Cibola County UpdatesFinance Reports & Budgets located on the finance department webpage.The county is reconciled through January 31, 2024, for the Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is reconciled through December 30, 2023, for the Tax operating account. Audit – Our FY23 audit was published today by the OSA. We will discuss this when our Auditors come in to publicly speak on our findings. The 2nd Quarter Report was submitted on time and is currently with the Budget and Finance Bureau Chief for final approval at DFA/LGD.BAR #4 was approved by DFA and has been entered into our accounting system.I attended the Rockin’ 66 Express Transit Board Meeting yesterday. They have a new bus on the road. It carries 8 passengers and is ADA compliant for wheelchair access of 1. It cost around $92,000. There are 3 more buses to come by 2026. The Transit Director stated through their management of funds and DOT grants, they should not have to ask for assistance with the purchases of the other buses from the county, city, or village. Additionally, these new busses do not require a CDL license so this will assist in keeping the positions filled over there. Congrats to Rockin’ 66 Express.



Presenter
Presentation Notes
GRT TrackerHere is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through January of 2024. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD) create. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 for FY24 and is solely dedicated to be used to pay our revenue bonds each year. We experienced a significant drop in revenue in this distribution due to a legal ruling . I reached out to David Monteith, our local government liaison, and he stated “A home health care agency filed a refund for $2.2 million dollars that was denied by the Department.  A recent court ruling ruled in favor of the agency requiring that the refund be given.” You can see the impact of this month’s GRT distribution on this graph.The rest of the regular GRT is divided up below in the breakdown.Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line. The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund.The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority.The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center.The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund.The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated to our County Fire Protection Fund.Our County Share GRT is split into 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fundThe Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless portion stayed. It is used in our general fund.The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated dispatch fund.



Presenter
Presentation Notes
GRT Tracker – All EntitiesThis slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities. You can see our GRT sustained growth has leveled off and is starting to trend down. We will monitor this closely and keep you informed as we must keep a balanced budget in respect to our expenditures, revenues and transfers. Additionally, you can see, we have added the County Equalization distribution into this graph. To clarify, only counties (not municipalities) receive this GRT equalization distribution, and it is formula driven to assist smaller counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. The tall spikes in the counties GRT represent this.The impact of the previously stated court ruling reduced our GRT distribution significantly and we did not get notified of this ruling until we reached out to the Taxation and Revenue Department for an explanation. This is why tracking and monitoring our GRT is paramount. You can see the drastic effect on the County and City’s GRT this month here in this graph. Please note this graph doesn’t reflect the Small Cities Assistance the Village and City received in the amounts of $90,000 each.



Last Month
Current Taxes Delinquent Taxes

$1,124,410.15 $404,471.46

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Property Tax CollectionsOur property tax county portions are coming in strong per our projections. As you see we are doing well as of January 31, 2023. Our delinquent taxes are coming in strong, and we will continue to monitor this.



Active Funds
Beginning Cash Balance 

as of 7-1-2023 
Beginning Investments YTD Revenues YTD Transfers YTD Expenditures YTD Adjustments

Ending Cash & 
Investments

101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,436,520.96 $170,212.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,606,733.73 
401 - GENERAL FUND $8,562,611.58 $0.00 $4,453,620.61 ($521,780.05) ($5,077,479.39) ($2,798,571.45) $4,618,401.30 

402 - ROAD $152,649.28 $0.00 $644,459.68 $0.00 ($741,958.68) $4,097.19 $59,247.47 
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,476.69 ($19,055.24) $0.00 ($15,578.55)

406 - INDIGENT $692,889.38 $0.00 $393,546.95 $0.00 ($517,865.90) $0.00 $568,570.43 
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $255,329.45 $0.00 $110,832.00 ($55,416.00) ($136,420.34) ($50.00) $174,275.11 
408 - BLUEWATER VFD $89,784.17 $0.00 $68,042.00 ($25,251.00) ($40,866.43) $1,003.50 $92,712.24 

409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $295,777.14 $0.00 $0.00 $55,416.00 ($120,106.76) $930.00 $232,016.38 
413 - LAGUNA EMS $5,674.63 $0.00 $11,147.00 $0.00 ($3,370.69) $0.00 $13,450.94 
415 - PINEHILL EMS $1,546.22 $0.00 $9,039.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,585.22 

416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $521,084.69 $0.00 $33,452.65 $0.00 ($6,136.53) ($259.34) $548,141.47 
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $341,301.63 $0.00 $86,495.00 ($37,531.00) ($57,523.42) $0.00 $332,742.21 

419 - LAGUNA VFD $859,195.51 $0.00 $200,552.00 $0.00 ($164,806.59) $0.00 $894,940.92 
424 - CUBERO VFD $172,179.27 $0.00 $296,909.00 ($13,541.00) ($19,680.70) $0.00 $435,866.57 
425 - CUBERO EMS $2,249.64 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($387.64) $0.00 $6,862.00 

427 - EL MORRO VFD $195,363.40 $0.00 $293,427.00 $0.00 ($8,950.72) $0.00 $479,839.68 
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $1,766.53 $0.00 $14,945.00 $0.00 ($6,663.53) $0.00 $10,048.00 

429-CIBOLA ADMIN EMS $0.85 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($3,316.86) $0.00 $1,683.99 
430 - LAGUNA VFD - VALENCIA STATION $0.00 $0.00 $105,553.00 $0.00 ($3,840.69) $0.00 $101,712.31 

435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH $194,548.33 $0.00 $799,866.00 ($4,000.00) ($1,008,107.15) ($1.44) ($17,694.26)
438 - DWI GRANT $56,841.28 $0.00 $23,029.60 $0.00 ($20,623.61) $1,363.63 $60,610.90 

439 - DWI DISTRIBUTION $143,059.42 $0.00 $174,992.00 $0.00 ($195,542.00) $130.58 $122,640.00 
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $1,208,050.12 $0.00 $171,431.73 $0.00 ($5,122.19) $0.00 $1,374,359.66 
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $97,714.69 $0.00 $22,248.00 $0.00 ($15,721.11) $292.20 $104,533.78 

569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $745,107.16 $0.00 ($96,507.32) $0.00 $648,599.84 
570 - 2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,590,192.01 $0.00 ($218,647.69) $0.00 $1,371,544.32 

575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $377,669.77 $10,710.24 $229,614.72 ($24,191.10) $0.00 $593,803.63 
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $76,707.40 $0.00 $134,262.24 ($12,970.00) ($49,137.15) $3,049.91 $151,912.40 

605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $0.00 $0.00 $119,000.00 ($18,018.36) ($24,939.00) $0.00 $76,042.64 
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $798,831.02 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($474,301.27) $168,206.28 $492,736.03 

607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $144,034.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $144,034.31 
614 - DETENTION CENTER $0.00 $780,003.86 $4,815,069.08 $400,000.00 ($5,204,156.90) $0.00 $790,916.04 

620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $15,961.85 $0.00 $57,751.15 $0.00 ($14,823.00) $0.00 $58,890.00 
646 - LG ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $768,286.22 $0.00 ($768,286.22) $0.00 $0.00 
647 - LATCF GRANT $3,151,902.50 $0.00 $3,151,902.50 $0.00 ($789,026.24) $23,235.17 $5,538,013.93 

648 - TPF COUNTY ROAD GRANTS FUND $1,505,488.13 $0.00 $1,187,500.00 $0.00 ($52,760.77) $0.00 $2,640,227.36 
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT $2,414,398.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,149,318.45) $0.00 $1,265,079.67 
651 - CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $294,317.29 $0.00 ($43,156.51) $0.00 $251,160.78 

TOTALS= $21,956,940.54 $6,594,194.59 $20,967,898.88 $0.00 ($17,082,797.79) ($2,596,573.77) $29,839,662.45 

Cibola County Operating Cash Recap - January 31, 2024

Recap

Presenter
Presentation Notes
January 31, 2023 – Monthly Finance Recap Here is our January 31, 2023, monthly financial report. As you can see, we are maintaining our investments and required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our investment fund, so we are not dipping into them. Our general fund is doing fine, and we are strong with operating cash to support our recurring expenditures. Our transfers equal zero, which is mandatory.The fund deficits in the Farm & Range is due to a timing in cash flows where we haven’t received the revenue yet and also this fund is also supplemented by the general fund when needed. We will address this fund again when our 3rd quarter report is due to the state.The fund deficit for the E-911 fund has already been corrected. It was just a timing of revenue cash flows coming in.This recap is developed using three reports:The pooled cash report gives what our beginning and ending cash balances should be. This should be reconciled to your bank statements every month.The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure activity.The balance sheets give us our adjustments to get from pooled cash to pooled cash and gives us our investments. This also reconciles to our bank statements.The county is in great fiscal shape and is following GAAP, GASB, and all state laws and requirements. 



The 2024 Legislative Session ended February 15, 2024. 
True or False? The bills that were approved by the legislature are now law 
as of February 15th. 
1. True
2. False

ANSWER IS: 2 – False. Although the bills were approved by the legislature, They still need 
to be approved by the Governor who may line-item veto by striking language from the 

approved bills or pocket veto by inaction. The Governor has until March 6th to take action 
on the bills before they become law.

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Monthly QuestionThe 2024 Legislative Session ended February 15, 2024. The bills that were approved by the legislature are now law as of February 15th? True or False?TrueFalse ANSWER IS: 2 – False. Although the bills were approved by the legislature, They still need to be approved by the Governor who may line-item veto by striking language from the approved bills or pocket veto by inaction. The Governor has until March 6th to take action on the bills before they become law.





COUNTY ROAD 18-B BRIDGE

Last Commission Meeting



COUNTY ROAD 18-B BRIDGE

As of Monday!



Christine Lowery, Chair
Ralph Lucero, 2nd Vice Chair
Daniel Torrez, 3rd Vice Chair
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Kate Fletcher, County Manager



Slide Outline and Notes of Cibola County Finance Report 

From July 1, 2023, through January 31, 2024, Finance Report 
       Commission Meeting February 22, 2024 

       Finance Report Cover Page 

       Cibola County Updates 

Finance Reports & Budgets located on the finance department webpage. 

The county is reconciled through January 31, 2024, for the Main Operating account and the 
Treasurer’s office is reconciled through December 30, 2023, for the Tax operating account.  

Audit – Our FY23 audit was published today by the OSA. We will discuss this when our Auditors 
come in to publicly speak on our findings.  

The 2nd Quarter Report was submitted on time and is currently with the Budget and Finance 
Bureau Chief for final approval at DFA/LGD. 

BAR #4 was approved by DFA and has been entered into our accounting system. 

I attended the Rockin’ 66 Express Transit Board Meeting yesterday. They have a new bus on the 
road. It carries 8 passengers and is ADA compliant for wheelchair access of 1. It cost around 
$92,000. There are 3 more buses to come by 2026. The Transit Director stated through their 
management of funds and DOT grants, they should not have to ask for assistance with the 
purchases of the other buses from the county, city, or village. Additionally, these new busses do 
not require a CDL license so this will assist in keeping the positions filled over there. Congrats to 
Rockin’ 66 Express. 

GRT Tracker 

Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through 
January of 2024. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution 
which is now also represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the 
NM Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD) create. The county Equalization was in the amount of 
$999,871 for FY24 and is solely dedicated to be used to pay our revenue bonds each year.  

We experienced a significant drop in revenue in this distribution due to a legal ruling . I reached out 
to David Monteith, our local government liaison, and he stated “A home health care agency filed a 
refund for $2.2 million dollars that was denied by the Department.  A recent court ruling ruled in 
favor of the agency requiring that the refund be given.” You can see the impact of this month’s GRT 
distribution on this graph. 

The rest of the regular GRT is divided up below in the breakdown. 

Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line.  

The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend. 



 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

     

   
 

  
  

Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:

The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund.

The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority.

The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center. 

The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund.

The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated to our County Fire Protection Fund.

Our County Share GRT is split into 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund

The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted
made up of the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment 
deactivated the hold harmless portion stayed. It is used in our general fund.

The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the 
consolidated dispatch fund.

GRT Tracker – All Entities

This slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities. You can
see our GRT sustained growth has leveled off and is starting to trend down. We will monitor this 
closely and keep you informed as we must keep a balanced budget in respect to our expenditures, 
revenues and transfers.

Additionally, you can see, we have added the County Equalization distribution into this graph. To 
clarify, only counties (not municipalities) receive this GRT equalization distribution, and it is formula 
driven to assist smaller counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. The 
tall spikes in the counties GRT represent this.

The impact of the previously stated court ruling reduced our GRT distribution significantly and we 
did not get notified of this ruling until we reached out to the Taxation and Revenue Department for 
an explanation. This is why tracking and monitoring our GRT is paramount. You can see the drastic 
effect on the County and City’s GRT this month here in this graph. Please note this graph doesn’t 
reflect the Small Cities Assistance the Village and City received in the amounts of $90,000 each.

Property Tax Collections

Our property tax county portions are coming in strong per our projections. As you see we are doing 
well as of January 31, 2024. Our delinquent taxes are coming in strong, and we will continue to 
monitor this.

January 31, 2024 – Monthly Finance Recap

Here is our January 31, 2024, monthly financial report. As you can see, we are maintaining our 
investments and required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our investment
fund, so we are not dipping into them. Our general fund is doing fine, and we are strong with 
operating cash to support our recurring expenditures.



Our transfers equal zero, which is mandatory. 

The fund deficits in the Farm & Range is due to a timing in cash flows where we haven’t received 
the revenue yet and also this fund is also supplemented by the general fund when needed. We will 
address this fund again when our 3rd quarter report is due to the state. 

The fund deficit for the E-911 fund has already been corrected. It was just a timing of revenue cash 
flows coming in. 

This recap is developed using three reports: 

The pooled cash report gives what our beginning and ending cash balances should be. This should 
be reconciled to your bank statements every month. 

The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure activity. 

The balance sheets give us our adjustments to get from pooled cash to pooled cash and gives us 
our investments. This also reconciles to our bank statements. 

The county is in great fiscal shape and is following GAAP, GASB, and all state laws and 
requirements.  

Monthly Question 

The 2024 Legislative Session ended February 15, 2024. The bills that were approved by the 
legislature are now law as of February 15th. True or False? 

1. True 
2. False  

ANSWER IS: 2 – False. Although the bills were approved by the legislature, They still need to be 
approved by the Governor who may line-item veto by striking language from the approved bills 
or pocket veto by inaction. The Governor has until March 6th to take action on the bills before 
they become law. 

The End – Questions from governing body 

  

 






















































































































	02.22.2024 Agenda
	7a. 01.25.24 Special Meeting Minutes
	7b. 01.25.24 Regular Meeting Minutes
	8a. Budget and Finance Report 
	9a. Presentation Route 66 Solar Battery Storage 
	10a. Public Hearing-Ord. 2024-001 NM Enabling Act 
	11a. Ordinance 2024-001
	11b. Res. 24-16 Issuance of IRB for RT. 66 Solar Battery Project
	11c. Matching Funds REQ from CDEC
	11d. Res. 24-17 FY24 BAR
	11e. Res. 24-18 Designating Polling Places
	11f. Appt. of Hosp. Board Member
	11g. Smith’s Capital Repairs 
	11h. San Rafael Fiscal Agent Request
	11i. 1. REQ over $20K-Brush Truck
	8a. 1-31-2023 Manager & Finance Report.pdf
	Public Comment Procedures
	Cibola County �Commission Meeting
	Slide Number 3
	Finance Updates
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Monthly Question
	MANAGER’S uPDATES
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Cibola County �Commission Meeting


